
 
CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 
AGENDA/PUBLIC NOTICE 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
SEPTEMBER 17, 2015 

6:00 P.M. 
 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
2. REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA  
3. APPEARANCE REQUESTS  
4. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
5. MINUTES:   

• Planning Commission & Platting Board, August 6, 2015 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ACTION ITEMS 
6. RESOLUTION 2015-21: A RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLAT OF DEFFENDALL SUBDIVISION, 

A REPLAT OF LOT 14, BLOCK 8, HAYSTACK HILL SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 201 TRAPPER DRIVE 
  
REGULAR MEETING 
No items 
 
WORKSESSION 
No items 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
No items 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 



Principles of the Unalaska Planning Commission 

1. The Position: In any community, the position of Planning Commissioner is a highly respected and

honored one.

2. The Job: The job of Planning Commissioner is to serve the public, as representatives of the City

Council and to the best of their ability, in ensuring sound planning and growth management in

Unalaska.  All decisions of the Planning Commission should be based on sound planning

principles and practices, and not on the personal opinion of individual Planning Commissioners.

Once the Planning Commission makes a recommendation to the City Council, the job of the

Planning Commissioners and Planning Commission is over, in terms of that particular action.

3. Integrity: Planning Commissioners are appointed by City Council.  The actions, behavior, and

comportment of each Planning Commissioner reflect not only on that Planning Commissioner’s

integrity – but also on the integrity of the City Council and of the entire City government.

4. Collaboration: An individual Planning Commissioner is not a “lone wolf,” but is part of a collective

body.  As such, each Planning Commissioner is expected to act in a collaborative manner with

his and her fellow Planning Commissioners.

5. Respect Each Other: While it is understandable to sometimes disagree with your fellow Planning

Commissioners on issues brought before the body, and appropriate to publically vocalize that

disagreement during Planning Commission meetings, a Planning Commissioner should always

respect the opinion of their fellow Commissioners and treat each other with respect.

6. Majority Rules: It is important to remember that, at the end of the day, the majority rules.  So,

after each action is brought before the body, discussed, and voted upon, Planning

Commissioners must accept and respect the rule of the majority – even if the ruling was counter

to an individual Commissioner’s position.

7. Respect Staff: A Planning Commissioner should respect the opinion of City Planning Staff,

whether the Planning Commissioner agrees with staff or not. Planning Staff Members are

professionals who are employed to serve not only the Planning Commission and general public,

but the City Council.

8. The Las Vegas Rule: What comes before the Planning Commission must stay before the

Planning Commission.  This means there can be no outside negotiating with petitioners or with

the public regarding applications brought before the Commission.  And, all discussions – pro or

con – concerning a petition before the Planning Commission, must take place solely within

Planning Commission meetings.

9. Respect Applicants and Public: Each Planning Commissioner must always show professionalism

and respect for applicants and the general public – regardless of the position held by that

Planning Commissioner or by the Planning Commission.

10. Upholding the Principles: Any member of the Planning Commission who finds that he or she

cannot uphold and abide by the above principles should resign from the Commission.



CONDUCTING A PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

 
The following is the sequence of events that is followed by the City of Unalaska Planning 
Commission and Platting Board in conducting a Public Hearing before the body. 
 

1. The Public Hearing is opened by the Chair of the Planning Commission/Platting 
Board who reads from the agenda. 

 
2. Any Ex-Parte questions or Commission member involvement are raised. If a 

Commission member(s) is excused, this is the proper time. 
 

3. Presentation by the staff. This is a short summary of the application, explanation 
of any maps, plats, exhibits, and code standards that might apply to the 
application. New written information not in the board packet is provided at this 
time. 

 
4. Presentation by the applicant. The applicant bears the responsibility for making 

the case or argument before the Commission. This is the time for Board members 
to ask questions of the applicant. Attempts to “negotiate” with the applicant 
should be conducted at this step (Step 4), while the public hearing is still open. 

 
5. Public Testimony. This includes those who are opposed to the application, and 

also the public in general. 
 

6. Rebuttal by the applicant. Final questions of all parties by the Commission. 
 

7. The Chair closes the Public Hearing and Commission deliberations begin. Once 
the hearing is closed, DO NOT REOPEN unless absolutely necessary. Questions 
of staff, the applicant, and the public are acceptable but uninitiated testimony is 
not. Attempts to “negotiate” with the applicant should be conducted at Step 4, not 
after the public hearing is closed. 

 
8. Commission discusses or debates the application. A motion must be made, with a 

second, and then final discussion. If a motion falls, an amendment(s) could be 
made to further or facilitate Commission final action. After “final action” is taken, 
reconsideration is possible per 8.04.060(G). 

 
 
 

 
DON’T BEND THE RULES FOR ONE, UNLESS YOU CHANGE THE RULES 

FOR ALL. 



Chair Help Sheet 

Approval of Minutes Steps: 

1. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve.
2. Call for a second to the motion.
3. Commission discussion.
4. Close the Commission discussion.
5. Vote.

Public Hearing Steps: 

1. Open the Public Hearing.
2. Chair calls for potential Ex Parte Communications and potential Conflicts of Interest from

Commissioners.
3. Staff Presentation.
4. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of staff.
5. Applicant Presentation.
6. Ask if Commissioners have any questions for the applicant.
7. Public Testimony.  (Ask person to state name for the record.)
8. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of the public.
9. Close the Public Hearing.
10. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve Resolution 2014-xx.
11. Call for a second to the motion.
12. Commission discussion.
13. Close the Commission discussion.
14. Vote.



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
THURSDAY, AUGUST 6, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
12:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Doanh Tran called the meeting to order at 12:00 PM. 
 
      Roll Call:     

Commissioners present: 
      Doanh Tran 

Vicki Williams 
Jessica Earnshaw 
Lottie Roll (arrived at 12:06pm after minutes were approved)  
Billie Jo Gehring 

 
      Staff Present:   
      Anthony Grande, Acting Planning Director   

Don Moore, City Manager 
 
2. REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA:  None 

 
3. APPEARANCE REQUESTS:  None 

 
4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:   City Manager, Don Moore, stated that this was one of the better 

Land Use Plans that he has seen in his experience serving as City Manager around the state 
and that the community involvement with this plan was commendable. 

 
5. MINUTES: Planning Commission & Platting Board, July 16, 2015.   Chair Tran called for a 

motion to approve the minutes from the July 16, 2015 meeting.  Jessica Earnshaw made a 
motion, Vicki Williams seconded the motion.  Chair Tran asked if there were any further 
discussions on the minutes.  There being no comments, Chair Tran called for a vote, which 
was unanimous (4-0).  The minutes for the July 16, 2015 meeting were adopted. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ACTION ITEMS:    
 
6.  Resolution 2015-19: A resolution approving preliminary plat and lot width reduction 

variance from 60 feet to 20 feet for Hatfield Subdivision, a resubdivision of Lot 2, A.R.C. 
Subdivision Addition No.1, located at 1926 East Broadway Avenue. 

 
Chair Tran confirmed that there was no conflict of interest or exparte communication, opened the 
public hearing and called for the staff presentation. 
 
Anthony Grande explained that this was a subdivision and variance request for a lot width 
reduction.  Approval of this resolution approves both the variance and preliminary plat.  The 20 
foot request is for Lot 3 and is similar to other flagpole lots that have been previously approved.   
The subdivision meets all other requirements according to the subdivision code.  Utilities will 
need to be shown on the plat and utility service lines installed before final plat approval.  Once 
Last revised: 8/28/2015 2:58:52 PM 
 



the utility requirements and other listed conditions are met, staff finds that the subdivision meets 
the requirements.   
 
Looking at the variance component of this request requires reviewing the three tests of code.  
The shape of the property, although almost 2 acres in size, only touches the road way at the front 
making access to the back lot more problematic.  Granting the 20 foot lot width makes the 
subdivision more practical and would promote the general interest of the public by providing 
more space for housing.  Approving this variance request will not have a negative impact on 
public welfare.  All three newly created lots are still large lots and should not create a hardship 
for the neighboring properties. Making land available for housing is priority with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Staff is recommending approval since the variance request meets all three 
tests of code.  Mr. Grande stated that two members of the public spoke to him expressing their 
concern about the creation of a flagpole lot in that area.  Mr. Grande said the concern was very 
valid and the commission should take that into account during their discussion.  Even though the 
commission has been approving flagpole lots, each request needs to be evaluated for its 
appropriateness before approval is granted. Another concern was that the creation of Lot 3 has 
the potential to cause a visual impact to neighbors due to a portion of the hillside being 
destroyed. This was not considered in the initial analysis since, on paper, it looks very similar to 
other variances that have been approved.  Staff recommended that the commission take those 
comments into consideration. 
 
Chair Tran asked the commissioners if they had any question for staff.  Hearing no questions, 
Chair Tran opened the floor for any public comment.  Juliann Tucker spoke on the behalf of 
herself and Gerard Parker. She spoke about several points, including the fact that this is a family 
friendly neighborhood with 20 kids living within two blocks that are under ten years old, and the 
increased density would not be appropriate for children. She also noted that the area already has 
a dangerous 3-way stop that will be made more dangerous as a result of this variance. She 
believes that development should be focused on the medium and high density areas instead of the 
single family areas. She hopes that the lots in her area will remain large lots. Chair Tran asked if 
there were any other members of the public who wished to speak.  Chair Tran asked Mr. 
Hatfield, the applicant, if he had anything he would like to add.  There being no further public 
comments and no questions of the commissioners, Chair Tran closed the public hearing. 
 
Chair Tran opened the commission discussion.  Commissioner Roll asked if the new lots were all 
zoned as residential or if they were commercial.  Staff informed the commission that the current 
zoning was residential and no commercial activity could take place on the lot without a 
conditional use permit.  Chair Tran expressed her appreciation for Ms. Tucker’s testimony and 
added it was the commissioners’ job to balance differing viewpoints in the community.  While 
Chair Tran appreciated Ms. Tucker’s concerns, she feels the commission should move forward 
with approval to create new housing opportunities.    Commissioner Earnshaw also understands 
wanting to maintain family friendly neighborhoods but also knows that more housing is needed.   
 
Chair Tran asked staff how density changes are handled by the Planning Department.  Mr. 
Grande explained that density in an area can change in one of two ways.  The first would be by 
subdividing into smaller lots, much like this request.  The other would be dependent on the type 
of development, whether it be multi-family or single-family building.  The current City zoning 
code only addresses how lots are zoned (single family, moderate density, high density) it does 
not address the size of the lot in different areas of the City.  The Land Use Plan that will be 
discussed later in the meeting is the first step in the direction of identifying which areas should 
Last revised: 8/28/2015 2:58:52 PM 
 



be lower density and which areas should be higher density.  In this particular subarea, the Land 
Use Plan calls for the lowest density possible as desirable.  Mr. Grande informed the commission 
that it is in their hands if they want to amend the City’s zoning code or policies.  Code can be 
changed to have minimum lot sizes specific to certain areas if that is the direction the 
commission wants to go.   
 
Commissioner Williams wondered if the ordinance should be changed to have a 20 foot frontage 
instead of 60 feet so the commission didn’t have to keep granting variances.  Mr. Grande 
clarified that the reduction was just for the 20 feet fronting the road, not for an overall lot width 
of 20 feet.   The variances that have been granted in the past have been looked at on a case by 
case basis.  
 
Chair Tran asked the applicant, Jay Hatfield, if this request was an urgent matter.  Mr. Hatfield 
stated that he had a buyer lined up for the existing structure on Lot 2.  Mr. Hatfield has no plans 
on developing Lot 3 at this time, but would like to proceed with the process in order to sell Lot 2.   
 
Juliann Tucker pointed out that she felt the addition of the flagpole lot would create confusion at 
the 3-way stop and had concerns about water run-off if the ravine was altered.   
 
Chair Tran asked the commissioners if they wanted to vote on this resolution tonight or postpone 
their decision.  Commissioner Gehring made a motion to approve Resolution 2015-19, 
Commissioner Earnshaw seconded.  Chair Tran asked if there were any further questions or 
comments.  Hearing none, Chair Tran called for a vote to approve Resolution 2015-19.  The vote 
was unanimous (5-0), and the motion was carried and adopted. 
 
 
REGULAR MEETING:   
 
7.  Resolution 2015-20:  A resolution adopting and recommending approval to the Unalaska 
City Council the Unalaska Land Use Plan: 2015 as a component of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Mr. Grande presented the final draft of the Unalaska Land Use Plan to the commissioners.  At 
the July 16th Planning Commission meeting, the commissioners let staff know that they were 
comfortable voting for the final draft with some language changes.  Mr. Grande made the 
following requested changes to the plan: 
 

• Added language in the Alyeska Subarea about the historic value of the Iliuliuk River. 
• Added language to the Captain Bay Subarea explaining that there may be 

recreational/subsistence value in the developable tidelands. 
• Removed language in the Amaknak Retail Subarea related to limiting industrial 

development in Margaret Bay. 
• Added language to the existing conditions clarifying that some vacant land is owned by 

the City. 
 
Staff informed the commission that approval of Resolution 2015-20 would adopt this plan as part 
of the Comprehensive Plan and recommend its approval to City Council.  Chair Tran asked the 
commissioners if they had any questions regarding the changes that were made.  Commissioner 
Earnshaw wanted to thank Planning Staff for their work on the plan and their patience with the 
process.  Chair Tran also expressed her thanks.   
Last revised: 8/28/2015 2:58:52 PM 
 



 
Chair Tran asked if there were any members of the public that would like to comment on the 
plan.  Hearing no comments, Chair Tran closed the public hearing.  Commissioner Earnshaw 
made a motion to approve Resolution 2015-20, Commissioner Roll seconded.  There being no 
further commission discussion, Chair Tran called for a vote to approve Resolution 2015-20.  The 
vote was unanimous (5-0), and the motion was carried and adopted. 
 
 
WORK SESSION: None 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS:  None 
 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT:   Chair Tran adjourned the meeting at 12:37 PM. 
  
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _______ DAY OF __________ 2015 BY THE CITY OF 
UNALASKA, ALASKA PLANNING COMMISSION. 
 
 
_________________________________ _________________________ 
Doanh Tran Date 
Commission Chair 
 
_________________________________ _________________________ 
Anthony Grande Date 
Secretary of the Commission 
 
Prepared by Kelly Tompkins and Anthony Grande, Planning Department 

Last revised: 8/28/2015 2:58:52 PM 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Item 6: 

DEFFENDALL 

PRELIMINARY  

PLAT 

 



Item 6: Preliminary Plat of Deffendall Subdivision (Res. 2015-21)  9.17.2015 
 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 
Planning Commission/Platting Board 

Staff Report 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLAT OF DEFFENDALL SUBDIVISION, A 
REPLAT OF LOT 14, BLOCK 8, HAYSTACK HILL SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 201 

TRAPPER DRIVE 
 

Project Information 
Land Owner Roger Deffendall 
Applicant Roger Deffendall 
Location  201 Trapper Drive 
Property Identification  04-09-211 
Application Type Preliminary Plat 
Project Description The proposal is to split one existing lot into three lots. 
Zoning Single-Family/Duplex Residential 
Exhibits Draft Resolution 2015-21, Preliminary Plat of Deffendall Subdivision, Parent Plat 

91-14, Planning Commission Resolution 2014-24, Planning Commission 
Resolution 2015-13, and Location Map 

Staff Recommendation Approval with Conditions as identified in Resolution 2015-21 
 
BACKGROUND 
The landowner/applicant has applied to subdivide one existing lot into three lots. The proposed Lot 3 would contain 
the existing building, which is a 3-unit apartment. Lots 1 and 2 are vacant. In December of 2014, the applicant 
received Variance Permit #2014-03 (included in this packet) through Resolution 2014-24 (included in this packet) 
that allows a lot width reduction from 60 feet to 20 feet. 
 
The plat is not an approval of development or construction, which is made clear in Condition #3, but the plat simply 
approves the subdivision of property. In order to approve a plat, the Platting Board must find that it conforms to the 
standards outlined in UCO 8.08.090 and 8.08.100, Subdivision Design Standards and Subdivision Improvements. 
Planning Staff has reviewed the plat and found that the conditions listed in the draft resolution are necessary to find 
the plat in compliance with these standards. 
 
Conditions #1 and #2 relate to the need for utilities serving the properties, which is the responsibility of the 
subdivider/applicant. Condition #4 requires that the setback lines shown be accurate. Condition #5 requires that the 
applicant complete the conditional use permit process started in Resolution 2015-13 (included in this packet), 
which would made the triplex on proposed Lot 3 a legal nonconforming use. Condition #6 requires dedication of an 
easement that may be needed in the future for an electric transformer for the development of Lots 1 and 2. 
Condition # 7 clarifies that the access/utilities easement is not public, but is simply a private agreement. Condition 
#8 clarifies who will sign this plat. Conditions #9 and #10 are included for every plat, requiring electronic 
submittals from the surveyor. 
 
With these conditions in the resolution, staff finds that the proposed plat meets the standards. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
In accordance with the standards outlined in Unalaska City Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.08 (Platting and 
Subdivision), the City of Unalaska Department of Planning, in concert with the Development Review Team, 
recommends approval of the preliminary plat of Deffendall Subdivision, with associated conditions outlined in draft 
Resolution 2015-21. 

1 



Item 6: Preliminary Plat of Deffendall Subdivision (Res. 2015-21)  9.17.2015 
 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 
Planning Commission/Platting Board 

Resolution 2015-21 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLAT OF DEFFENDALL SUBDIVISION, A 
REPLAT OF LOT 14, BLOCK 8, HAYSTACK HILL SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 201 

TRAPPER DRIVE 
 
WHEREAS, UCO 8.08 sets forth the procedures and requirements for the subdivision and platting of 
land and provides that the Planning Commission/Platting Board shall act as the Platting Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, Roger Deffendall is the owner of Lot 14, Block 8, Haystack Hill Subdivision, P-91-14, 
Aleutian Islands Recording District (04-09-211); and 
 
WHEREAS, the landowner has submitted a plat application to split the existing lot into three lots; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission held a public hearing and approved Resolution 2014-24 on November 20, 
2014, which led to Variance 2014-03, allowing a 20-foot lot width on this property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Departments of Planning, Public Works, Public Utilities, and Public 
Safety staff have reviewed the proposed plat and have requested revisions as described below; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 17, 2015 to 
consider this platting action and to hear testimony of the public; 
 
WHEREAS, notices were posted and mailed in accordance with Title 8, UCO §8.08.020(F); and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Platting Board approves the preliminary plat of 
Deffendall Subdivision with the following conditions of approval in accordance with the standards 
outlined in Unalaska Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.08 (Platting and Subdivision): 
 
1. All utility lines serving this subdivision must be shown on the final plat, including relevant mainlines. 

All easements must be shown on the final plat. 
2. Utility service lines shall be installed for all lots prior to approval of the final plat, and their locations 

shall be shown on the final plat. Utility service lines for any lot shall not cross through another lot 
without a dedicated utility easement. 

3. The plat shall clearly distinguish between existing and proposed buildings. A note shall be added 
stating, “The proposed buildings shown on Lots 1 and 2 have not been approved by the City of 
Unalaska, and this plat does not imply endorsement or approval of the proposed buildings.” 

4. Setback lines shown on the plat shall be adjusted to match the current zoning requirements upon 
consultation with the Department of Planning. 

5. The applicant shall not proceed to the final plat until the existing triplex on Lot 3 is a legal 
nonconforming use, which may be accomplished by completing the conditions of approval of the 
Conditional Use Permit obtained in Resolution 2015-13. 

6. A 10-foot by 10-foot electric utility easement shall be dedicated for a possible future transformer and 
shown on this plat. The location shall be coordinated with the Department of Public Utilities. A 
signature box shall be added for acceptance of easements by the City. 

7. The 20-foot access/utilities easement shown on the plat shall be relabeled as “20’ Private Access and 
Utility Easement.” 

 1 



Item 6: Preliminary Plat of Deffendall Subdivision (Res. 2015-21)  9.17.2015 
 

8. The name of the signer under City Approval must be changed from “Planning Director, Platting 
Authority” to “Chair of the Platting Board”. 

9. A closure report shall be submitted. 
10. Electronic versions of the final plat shall be provided to the Department of Planning at the time of 

mylar plat submittal, allowing for incorporation into the City’s CADD and GIS programs. 
 
Upon the correction of the aforementioned deficiencies, the applicant shall submit a corrected preliminary 
plat to the Department of Planning for review and concurrence before proceeding to final plat. This 
conditional plat approval becomes effective if there are no appeals within ten (10) working days after the 
Planning Commission action and shall remain in effect for one year. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____DAY OF_______________, 2015, BY THE PLATTING 
BOARD OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA. 
 
 
______________________    __________________________ 
Doanh Tran      Anthony Grande 
Commission Chair     Secretary of the Commission 

 2 













2
6

4
 f

t

ktompkins
Callout
201 Trapper Dr.









ATTACHMENT A







8/24/2015 CHAPTER 8.08: PLATTING AND SUBDIVISION

http://www.amlegal.com/alpscripts/getcontent.aspx 1/5

Print

Unalaska, Alaska Code of Ordinances

§ 8.08.090  SUBDIVISION DESIGN STANDARDS.

   (A)   General.  The proposed subdivision shall conform to:

      (1)   The provisions of AS 29.40 and AS 40.15;

      (2)   Title 8 UCO; and

      (3)   The Comprehensive Plan.

   (B)   Streets.

      (1)   General.

         (a)   The streets shall be designed and located in relation to existing and planned streets,
topographical conditions, and natural terrain features (such as streams and existing growth), public
convenience, and safety and in their appropriate relation to the proposed uses of the land to be
served by such streets.

         (b)   Street rightofways shall be wide enough to provide for the present travel surfaces, future
road expansion, sidewalks, and access for installation and maintenance of street drainage facilities
or other utilities.

         (c)   Construction of all streets shall conform to the standard specifications as established by
the “City of Unalaska Standard Specifications for Construction of Streets.”  This includes, but is not
limited to grades, vertical and horizontal sight distances, tangents, and intersection designs.

         (d)    Rightofways shall not have permanent structures built upon them by property owners.

      (2)   Types of streets.

         (a)   Arterial streets shall be properly integrated with the existing and proposed system of
arterial streets and highways.  The arterial street shall have a minimum sixtyfoot width with a
minimum travel surface of forty feet unless otherwise specified by the Platting Authority;

         (b)   Collector streets shall be properly related to specific traffic generated by such uses as
schools, churches, small shopping areas, population centers, and the access to arterial streets. 
Collector streets shall have a minimum fiftyfoot width with a minimum travel surface of forty feet
unless otherwise specified by the Platting Authority;

         (c)   Minor streets, including culdesacs, shall be laid out to conform as much as possible to
topography, to discourage use by throughtraffic, to provide the minimum amount of street
necessary to provide convenient, safe access to residential lots, and to provide an efficient route for
utility systems.  Minor streets shall have a minimum fortyfoot width with a minimum travel surface
of twentyfour to thirtysix feet unless otherwise specified by the Platting Authority;

         (d)   Alleys should be used only in commercial areas for delivery and services.  Alleys may be
used in residential areas when approved by the Board.  Alleys shall have a twentyfoot width with a
travel surface of sixteen to twenty feet unless otherwise specified by the Platting Authority.



8/24/2015 CHAPTER 8.08: PLATTING AND SUBDIVISION

http://www.amlegal.com/alpscripts/getcontent.aspx 2/5

         (e)   Culdesacs shall have a minimum rightsofway width of 40 feet, leading to a culdesac
turnaround with a minimum radius of 50 feet.

      (3)   Halfstreets.  Where a street is adjacent to a subdivision, the other half of that street shall be
dedicated by the subdivider.  No half streets within new subdivisions shall be allowed, unless
specifically approved by the Board.

      (4)   Crosswalks.  Pedestrian crosswalks not less than fifteenfeet wide may be required by the
Board where deemed necessary to provide for pedestrian access to schools, shopping centers, and
playgrounds, or other community facilities.

      (5)   Street names.  See Chapter 15.08 UCO “Street Names.”

   (C)   Blocks.  The length, width, and shape of blocks shall be such as are appropriate for the
topography, locality, and type of development.

   (D)   Lots.

      (1)   General.  The size, shape, and orientation of lots shall be appropriate for the location of the
subdivision and for the type of development and use contemplated.

      (2)   Dimensions.

         (a)   Lot dimensions shall conform to the requirements of Chapter 8.12, “Zoning,” provided
that no lot shall be less than 10,000 square feet in area.  If requirements identified in § 8.08.070(A)
(3)(d) have been addressed, residential lots less than 10,000 square feet but greater than 6,000
square feet may be permitted.  See Chapter 8.12 for lot size requirements in different districts.

         (b)   Lots shall be designed with a suitable proportion between width and depth.  Long and
narrow, or wide and shallow lots are undesirable.  Normal depth shall not exceed 2 1/2 times width,
or be less than 85 feet.  Width of all lots shall not be less than 60 feet.  See Chapter 8.12, “Zoning,”
for lot dimension requirements in different districts.

         (c)   Lots laid out for commercial or industrial purposes shall be adequate to provide for the
offstreet service and parking facilities required by the type of development.

         (d)   No lots, tracts, or parcels shall be created or designed which would create any non
conforming setbacks as they relate to any physical improvements which are subject to setback,
building separation, or other dimensional provisions.

      (3)   Corner lots.  Corner lots should be large enough to allow full setback of buildings from
both streets as required.

      (4)   Access.  Every lot shall front or abut on a publicly dedicated street.

      (5)   Lot lines.  Side lines of lots shall be substantially at right angles or radial to the side of the
streets.

      (6)   Lot remnants.  All remnants of lots left over after subdividing of a large tract must be added
to adjacent lots or rightofway rather than be allowed to remain as unusable parcels.

      (7)   Buffer zones and greenbelts.  Buffer zones and/or greenbelts may be required by the
Platting Authority.

(Ord. No. 200104, passed 5801; Am. Ord. 200509, passed 42605; Am. Ord. 201207, passed 9
1112)



8/24/2015 CHAPTER 8.08: PLATTING AND SUBDIVISION

http://www.amlegal.com/alpscripts/getcontent.aspx 3/5

§ 8.08.100  SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS.

   (A)   Provision of improvements.

      (1)   Purpose.  The purpose of this section is to establish and define the improvements which
will be required under a subdivision agreement developed by the subdivider and public officials and
agencies concerned with the administering, planning, designing, constructing, and financing of
public facilities and to establish procedures for assuring compliance with these requirements.

      (2)   Responsibility.  It shall be the responsibility of the subdivider to have prepared by a
registered engineer a complete set of construction plans, including profiles, crosssections,
specifications, and other supporting data for the required public street, utilities, and other facilities. 
Such construction plans shall be based on data contained in the approved preliminary plat.

      (3)   Relief to required improvements.  If the subdivider/developer or its agent seek to avoid any
requirements of this section, relief to the specific requirements shall be sought from the Platting
Authority.  Such requests will be in writing and shall state the reasons for the request.  The request
will be reviewed by the applicable city departments.  Consultation with appropriate departments is
advised.

   (B)   Required improvements.  Prior to being granted approval for the final plat, the subdivider
shall have installed, or shall have furnished an adequate guarantee for the ultimate installation of the
following improvements:

      (1)   Streets.  All streets shall be constructed and provided in accordance with applicable
standard specifications of the city (See City of Unalaska Standard Specifications for Construction of
Streets.)  The Platting Authority may waive this requirement.

      (2)   Water supply.

         (a)   Where the community water system is available within 300 feet of the proposed
subdivision, each lot within the subdivision shall be provided with a connection thereto.

         (b)   Where a community water system is not available, the subdivider shall provide wells or a
watersupply system for each lot in accordance with the requirements of the Alaska Department of
Environmental Conservation.

         (c)   Fire hydrants shall be installed and approved by the Department of Public Utilities in all
subdivisions with a community water system.

      (3)   Sanitary sewage system.

         (a)   Where community sewerage facilities are available within 300 feet of the proposed
subdivision, the subdivider shall supply both collectors and laterals and provide for each lot the
connection to the community system.

         (b)   Where a community sewerage system does not exist, the subdivider shall provide either
individual or collective sewerage facilities for each lot in accordance with the requirements of the
Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation.  On large lot subdivisions of an acre or more,
this requirement may be waived by the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation.

      (4)   Electric service.  Where community electric facilities are available within 300 feet of the
proposed subdivision, the subdivider shall provide for each lot a connection to the community
system.



8/24/2015 CHAPTER 8.08: PLATTING AND SUBDIVISION

http://www.amlegal.com/alpscripts/getcontent.aspx 4/5

      (5)   Oversize utility systems.  The Board, in consultation with the Department of Public Utilities,
may require the subdivider to install oversize utility systems in order to accommodate probable and
desirable growth in the immediate area.  When such oversize systems are required, the subdivider
shall be reimbursed by the city for the excess costs of providing standard utility lines.

      (6)   Easements.  The subdivider will be required to consult with the Department of Public
Utilities for location of easements as they relate to existing or proposed public utilities.  In instances
where the city determines that providing electric, water or wastewater utility service requires the
location of electric, water or wastewater equipment and/or main lines on the lots located within the
subdivision, the subdivider/developer shall be required to grant a utility easement at no charge to the
city, appropriate in size, nature and location to accommodate the installation and ongoing
maintenance of the equipment and/or main lines needed to serve the  subdivision.  The equipment
and/or main lines may be used to serve the properties of other utility customers if the service does
not change the size, nature or location of the equipment and/or main lines, or otherwise create an
additional burden upon the property within the subdivision.

         (a)   Utility easements along rear or side lines of all lots may be required, although utilities will
be placed in public rightofways whenever possible.

      (7)   Drainage.  The subdivider shall consult with the Department of Public Works for location
of easements as they relate to existing or proposed drainage. In instances where the city determines
that an area requires the location of drainage equipment on the lots located within the subdivision,
the subdivider/developer shall be required to grant a drainage easement at no charge to the city,
appropriate in size, nature and location to accommodate the installation and ongoing maintenance
of the equipment needed to provide adequate drainage for the subdivision. The subdivider may be
responsible for a total surface drainage plan showing all drainage facilities and slopes. Drainage
easements will be provided whenever the subdivision is traversed by a water course, drainage way,
channel, or stream conforming to the course of that feature and wide enough to provide access for
maintenance and improvement. Consultation with the Department of Public Works is advised.

   (C)   Extent of improvements.  All the required improvements shall be installed to the boundaries
of the subdivision and shall be designed to provide for future extension to and service of contiguous
areas.

   (D)   Dedication.  All streets, facilities, and improvements shall be expressly dedicated to public
use and maintenance at the time of the approval of the final plat.  Those dedicated shall be
constructed at acceptable city standards prior to acceptance by the city.

   (E)   Guarantee of required improvements.  Before considering the final plat where improvements
are required by the Platting Authority, a “Planning Determination” must be made that all
improvements required by the Platting Authority have been constructed.  If the required
improvements have not been completed, the subdivider shall be required to include with the final
plat a surety bond or certified check in an amount equal to the cost of construction of those
improvements as estimated by the city.  The guarantee will be subject to the conditions that the
improvements will be completed within 24 months after approval of the final plat.  If completed, the
city will return the full amount of the guarantee to the subdivider.  If not completed, the city shall
complete construction of the improvements with the guarantee.  Any amount of the guarantee in
excess of the costs of completing the requirement improvements will be returned to the subdivider. 
However, the subdivider cannot be charged for any amount in excess of the original guarantee.

   (F)   Maintenance agreement.  The subdivider shall guarantee that the required improvements
provided will remain in good condition for a period of one year after the date of conditional
acceptance by the city and shall agree to make all repairs to and maintain said improvements in



8/24/2015 CHAPTER 8.08: PLATTING AND SUBDIVISION

http://www.amlegal.com/alpscripts/getcontent.aspx 5/5

good condition during the oneyear period at no cost to the city.  The subdivider may be required by
the Board to include with the final plat a surety bond or certified check in an amount equal to five
percent of the cost of improvements, for payment of costs for any correction, reconstruction, repair,
or maintenance of the improvements during the oneyear warranty period.  Any amount of the
maintenance guarantee in excess of the costs of correction, reconstruction, repair, or maintenance
will be returned to the subdivider.

(Ord. No. 200104, passed 5801; Am. Ord. 200509, passed 42605)


	09-17-15 Agenda
	Principles of the Planning Commission
	How to Conduct a Public Hearing
	Chair Help Sheet
	08-06-15 Meeting Minutes for approval
	Item 6 - Deffendall Preliminary Plat
	Staff Report
	Resolution 2015-21
	Application
	Preliminary Plat
	Parent Plat 91-14
	Location Map
	Variance Permit 2014-03
	Resolution 2014-24
	Resolution 2015-13
	Subdivision Design Standards




